
 

 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH 

JOINT COMMITTEEJOINT COMMITTEEJOINT COMMITTEEJOINT COMMITTEE    

    
10.00 am10.00 am10.00 am10.00 am 

FRIDAYFRIDAYFRIDAYFRIDAY    

5 DECEMBER 20145 DECEMBER 20145 DECEMBER 20145 DECEMBER 2014 

 

Cabinet Suite Cabinet Suite Cabinet Suite Cabinet Suite ----    Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, 

GloucesterGloucesterGloucesterGloucester 

 

 

MEETING PAPERS 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE 

 

TIME: 10.00 am 

DATE: Friday 5th December, 2014 

VENUE: Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

 
A G E N G A 

 
ITEM TOPIC CONTACT 

1. Apologies  Jane Cleaver 
Tel: 01452 
425096 

2. Declarations of Interest   
 To receive declarations by members of (a) personal interests 

(including their nature) and (b) prejudicial interests under the Code 
of Conduct. 
 

Jane Cleaver 
Tel: 01452 
425096 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 10)  
  

To approve the minutes of the meetings held on 12 September 
and 31 October 2014.  

Jane Cleaver 
Tel: 01452 
425096 

4. Growth Deal (Pages 11 - 22)  
  

To receive a report from the LEP on progress with the 
Implementation Planning for Round 1, the Round 2 (top up 
funding) submission, plans for developing the project pipeline, plus 
the formation of the management arrangements for the European 
Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF). 

Pete Carr 
 

5. Funding Policy (Pages 23 - 26)  
  

To consider and agree the spending plan for the Strategic 
Economic Development Fund including the principles of the 
appointment of a Programme Manager. 

Sandra Cowley 
 

6. The Reformation of CSPIG   
  

To receive a report on progress with the reformation of CSPIG. 
Cllr Steve 
Jordan 
 

7. Planning & Infrastructure (Pages 27 - 30)  
  

To consider future strategic infrastructure requirements and 
resourcing challenges. 

Simon Excell 
Tel: 01452-
428487 

8. Gloucestershire Local Transport Board (Pages 31 - 32)  
  

To consider a nomination for the GEGJC’s representative on the 
 
 



 
Published Date Not Specified 
 

GLTB. 
9. Gloucestershire Growth Hub   
 To receive a presentation about the Gloucestershire Growth Hub. Pete Carr 

 
10. Strategic Rail Issues (Pages 33 - 38)  
 To receive a report about emerging strategic rail issues and to 

consider future joint action. 
Nigel Riglar 
Tel: 01452 
328470 

11. Future Meeting Dates   
 To note that the Committee is scheduled to meet on the following 

dates in 2015: 
 
Wednesday, 18 March 
Wednesday, 3 June 
Wednesday, 9 September 
Wednesday, 9 December 
 

Jane Cleaver 
Tel: 01452 
425096 

 

NOTES 

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Patrick Molyneux and 
Cllr Robert Vines  Cllr Paul James, Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr Carol Topple, Cllr 
Geoff Wheeler, Diane Savory and Michael Tripp 
 

(b) IN ATTENDANCE – Local Authority Chief Executives and relevant officers 
 

(c) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425240/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting.  
 

 
GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS 
 

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list. 

 

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Friday 12th September, 2014 commencing at 11.00 am at the Council 
Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Mark Hawthorne 
(Chairman) 
Cllr James 
Cllr Jordan (Vice-Chair) 
 

Cllr Patrick Molyneux 
Cllr Robert Vines 
Cllr Geoff Wheeler 
 

Substitutes:   
 

Apologies: Cllr Christopher Hancock 

 
1. MEMBERSHIP  

 
 
 
The membership of the Committee for the year 2014/2015 was noted.  
 Adam Starkey and Neil Ricketts represented the LEP at this meeting. 
 

2. ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON AND VICE-CHAIRPERSON  
 
 
a) Cllr Mark Hawthorne (GCC) was elected Chairman for the remainder of the 

civic year. 
 
b) Cllr Steve Jordan (Cheltenham Borough Council) was elected Vice-

Chairman for the remainder of the civic year. 
 
 

3. GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS  
 
 
Having noted that the Inter Authority Agreement formally establishing the 
Committee had been signed and sealed on 4 September 2014, the Committee 
recorded their thanks for the work undertaken by officers from all constituent 
authorities in preparing this agreement. 
 
The Committee was informed that the County Council had formally established a 
Joint Scrutiny Committee for this area of work at its meeting on 4 June 2014, 
appointing Cllr Colin Hay as the Chairperson. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

 
4. LEP UPDATE  

 
Pete Carr, Chief Executive, LEP, updated the Committee on progress in the 
following areas: 
 
a) Growth Deal delivery arrangements – The focus was currently on making 

sure that all projects would be ready to start when funding was released in 
April 2015.  Discussions continued with the relevant Government offices to 
agree suitable monitoring arrangements. 

 
b) Round 2 – Growth Deal – Since the timescale for bids for this was very short 

(business cases were likely to be required by the end of November 2014) it 
was unlikely that any new projects would be submitted.  It was hoped that 
bids based on extensions of current projects could be made. 

 
 Members noted that Flood alleviation projects would meet many of the 

requirements for successful bids. 
 
c) Formation of the Community Interest Company – Although progress had 

been slower than initially expected, this was likely to be finalised in the near 
future. 

 
d) Development of the Skills Board – This Board had had its first meeting, 

which had gone well.  The Committee requested that the next update report 
should outline the progress made to date, and the indicative work-
programme. 

 
5. JOINT COMMITTEE  WORK PROGRAMME  

 
 
Consideration was given by Members to the following matters: 
 
a) Growth Deal Indicative Work Programme – It was agreed that although 

containing useful information, future reports of this regular item should 
combine this work programme with the LEP’s work programme, highlighting 
the desired outcome for each project and progress made.  This document 
could then be considered by both the Committee and the LEP Board.  
Members requested that a presentation on the ‘Growth Hub’ project be made 
to the Committee’s meeting in December. 

 
b) Joint Committee Funding Policy – Members agreed that the important issue 

was to ensure sufficient funds were available within the Pool to support 
county-wide projects.  However, the Committee noted that the recent finding 
by the Valuation Tribunal in the Tewkesbury area could have an effect on the 
levels achieved within the Business Rates Pool, and could also be a risk 
elsewhere in the county.  It was therefore felt prudent at this time for the 
pooled element to remain at 20%. 

 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

 Having noted the information within the report and the observations made at 
the meeting, the Committee 

 
 Resolved to: 

• Adopt the overall priority order for use of the SEDF, as set out in 

paragraph 4 of the report;  

• Invite all 7 constituent Councils to review the SEP work programme and 

identify any resource gaps that they anticipate, particularly where they 

expect to ask for a contribution from the SEDF;  

• Establish a spending plan for the SEDF (13/14 & 14/15) for review at the 

next meeting. 

• Invite each member district council to consider establishing a Local 

Economic Development Fund (LEDF) using all or part of the 80% 

distributed Business Rate Pool surplus and that each LEDF, where 

established, is used at the discretion of the member council to support 

economic growth which benefits its area. 

 
c) Joint Committee Programme Manager – Progress with this appointment was 

noted.  Since the results of Job evaluation were not yet available, the 
Committee asked that the final grading of the post be developed by Mike 
Dawson and Nigel Riglar with input from Cllrs Hawthorne, Jordan and 
Wheeler. 

 
d) Associated Planning and Infrastructure Issues – Consideration was given to 

the underlying support mechanisms to feed into the Joint Committee in the 
future.  

 
 During this discussion the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Authorities 

(Tewkesbury, Cheltenham and Gloucester) raised concerns that the current 
approach could result in 4 unrelated Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)s 
(i.e. covering JCS, Forest, Stroud and Cotswold) and in particular the need 
to develop a mechanism for identifying and funding cross CiL boundary 
infrastructure. It was agreed that this topic should be considered as soon as 
possible and that this highlighted the need for the proposed re-structure of 
the County Strategic Planning Issues Group (CSPIG) to take place as soon 
as possible. 

 
 The Committee therefore agreed that action should be taken to adjust the 

mechanisms as proposed, with the aim of CSPIG assuming its new form by 
November.  Cllr Jordan accepted the role of co-ordinator for this area.  On 
this basis the Committee 

 
 
 
 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

Resolved to: 
 

• Take over from Leadership Gloucestershire the responsibility to make 
nominations to the Gloucestershire Local Transport Board and to seek 
periodic updates on its work. 

• Establish a strategically focused planning and infrastructure sub-group 
with the terms of reference and membership described in the Appendix 
to this report. 

 
e) Broadband – ‘Fastershire’ – Having noted the progress made on the roll-out 

of this project, some disappointment was expressed over the lower than 
expected take-up.  It was felt that a lack of clarity over which areas were now 
connected could have contributed to this issue.  It was agreed that the 
Fastershire E-zine link should be provided to all District Councils so that the 
information could be more widely disseminated.  The Committee was 
pleased to note that the contract for the next phase of deployment was due 
for approval in the very near future. 

 
 
 

6. JOINT COMMITTEE & LEP COMMON ISSUES  
 
 
a) Lead Roles in terms of Work Planning – Having noted the information 

provided by Mike Dawson and contained in the report, Members accepted 
the need for consistent messages to be given by all constituent bodies. 

 
b) Development Sessions Follow-up – The proposal for a follow-up session to 

be held in the autumn was accepted. 
 

7. ACCOUNTABLE BODY UPDATE  
 
 
The Committee noted that guidance from central government on the role of the 
Accountable body had not yet been received.  This had meant that although it had 
been possible to make a start on some areas of work, it would not be possible for a 
clear outline of expectations to be prepared until the guidance had been published. 
 
Having received a short briefing on the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment 
Fund (GLIIF), the Committee requested a more detailed report to be presented to 
its next meeting. 
 
 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The Committee’s next meeting date of Friday, 5 December at 10am was noted. 
 
The following dates were agreed for meetings in 2015: 
 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 5 - 
 

Wednesday, 18 March 
Wednesday, 3 June 
Wednesday, 9 September 
Wednesday, 9 December 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 
 
Meeting concluded at 12:35 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Friday 31st October, 2014 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Mark Hawthorne 
(Chairman) 
Cllr Jordan 
 

Cllr Robert Vines 
Cllr Geoff Wheeler 
 

Substitutes: Cllr Colin Organ 
 

Apologies: Cllr Paul James, Cllr Patrick Molyneux and Cllr Christopher 
Hancock 

 
9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 
Members noted that several members of Committee represented organisations 
involved in making bids for further Growth Deal monies. 
  
The Chairman indicated that since this Committee was being asked to give their 
views on the proposed bids and was not the decision-making forum for the 
submitted bids, no formal declarations of interests were required. However, the 
Legal Advisor reminded members that it was, of course, necessary for them to 
consider whether they maintained an open mind to enable an objective assessment 
of the proposals being put forward by GFirst if they wished to take part in the 
matters before the Committee.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. REVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC ECONOMIC PLAN (SEP)/GROWTH DEAL 
ROUND 1 TOP-UP SUBMISSION  
 
 
David Owen, Chief Executive, GFirst, informed the Committee of the LEP Board’s 
views on the 23 bids submitted for the additional resources likely to be allocated by 
the Government under the SEP Growth Deal Round 1. 
 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

Since Gloucestershire’s position following the initial distribution was unique in that 
all bids had been accepted, it had been necessary to establish clear criteria against 
which the bids could be considered.  The criteria used were as set out on page 2 of 
the accompanying report.  It was accepted that future bidding opportunities may 
have broader criteria.  However it was important to prepare as much as possible 
based on the information currently available. 
 
Mr Owen was pleased to report that a number of the bids submitted already met 
these criteria and that several others were at a stage where, following some 
additional work, the projects would be ready so that a quick response could be 
made to any further bidding round opportunities in 2015.   
 
Referring to table on page 3 of the report, Mr Owen explained that the bids 
submitted had been placed into the following categories: 
 
Ready for submission 
 

• Royal Agricultural University - Innovation spaces for rural business and 
agricultural technology start-ups 

 

• Retail Entrepreneurship 
 

• Gloucestershire Science and Technology Park: Berkeley Green - Digital 
technology and Cyber Security Skills training 

 

• Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration (at reduced level of £4.13m) 
 
 
At a stage for further work to form a ‘pipeline project’ 
 

• Technical Skills Training Centre - Poeton Industries 
 

• Cheltenham Spa Rail Scheme 
 

• Gloucester Railway Station 
 

• GCC - Rail station improvements 
 

• Lydney Transport Strategy - Newerne Street Link, Lydney Revolutions, 
Lydney/Whitecroft/ Parkend Cycleway 

 

• Highways alterations to Oxstalls lane roundabout, to improve access to the 
Growth Hub and relieve congestion incurred due to increased traffic 

 

• Improve access to RAU and South Chesterton site with roundabout on A433 
& serviced routes into employment land 

 
 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

• GCC - Cycle improvements linking Cheltenham with Bishop’s Cleeve and at 
Stroud 

 

• Improving Access to Business: Gloucester & Sharpness Canal Sustainable 
Transport Corridor 

 

• Tewkesbury Town Centre Masterplan 
 
Not yet ready or not met criteria or already allocated funds 
 

• Gloucestershire STEM Centre Proposal 
 

• Gloucestershire College - New college campus in Forest of Dean; Vocational 
and academic facilities 

 

• Glevum Windows and Conservatories - expansion to existing premises 
 

• Gloucestershire Science and Technology Park: Berkeley Green - Facilities to 
research, develop test & demonstrate a range of renewable energy options/ 
STEM skills/Specialist business support 

 

• Growth Hub Innovation Technology Centre - Expansion to create new facility 
and equipment to deliver range of support and skills initiatives for innovation 
in manufacturing design & construction. 

 

• Tewkesbury J9/A46 Ashchurch Proposal 
 

• Cinderford Northern Quarter Site Preparation Works (both proposals) 
 

• Destination Forest - Tourism developments - 5 Acres Development, 
Coleford, Cinderford Football club relocation, Lydney harbour Area 
Improvements 

 

• GCC -Flood resilience schemes west and north of Gloucester. 
 

 
In response to questions, Mr Owen explained that advice from the Dept for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) was to bid for more than the indicative 
maximum.  If further prioritisation was required as the monies on offer would not 
cover the total submitted, then the preferred order would be: 
 

• Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration (at reduced level of £4.13m) 
 

• Royal Agricultural University - Innovation spaces for rural business and 
agricultural technology start-ups 

 

• Retail Entrepreneurship 
 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

• Gloucestershire Science and Technology Park: Berkeley Green - Digital 
technology and Cyber Security Skills training 

 
With regard to the ranking of the various bids, the primary focus had been on the 
content and quality of the business case presented.  The LEP had discussed the 
proposed approach to ranking with officials from the DCLG who had indicated their 
support for the approach taken.  Further discussions with officials from the DCLG 
had also improved the understanding of the criteria to be met which should prove 
very valuable for the development of the ‘pipeline projects’. 
 
Having considered the information presented, both written and oral, the Committee 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the 23 schemes submitted be noted; 
 
2. That the assessment made by the LEP, which led to the identification of 

the four schemes to be submitted to the DCLG, be noted; 
 
3. That the prioritisation of these four schemes as identified above for 

funding from the SEP Growth Deal Round 1 Top-Up Submission be 
endorsed; 

 
4. That the LEP present a report on the management of ‘pipeline projects’, 

to include the assessment criteria used, to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
Meeting concluded at 10:50 

 
 

Page 10



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

GFirst LEP Update for Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee meeting, December 2014 

A. Progress with implementation planning for Growth Deal Round 1 

 

1. Implementation Plan 

Format and content has now been agreed with colleagues from the local Growth Teams, following 

suggestions from local authority colleagues in the Senior Officers Group. The plan is being updated by 

the LEP staff team at the end of each month and includes a simple RAG rating to highlight any concerns 

and remedial actions in both the ‘wider asks’ sections and the key projects. The November version is 

being finalized after this update has been circulated so copies of the latest version of the 

implementation plan will be available at the December GEGJC meeting. 

Additional work in being done to strengthen the risk management section of the plan to tie in with the 

requirements of the Assurance Framework (see below). 

2. Assurance Framework 

BIS has circulated version 4 of its guidance on the development of local Assurance Frameworks (see 

attached). This has implications for Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) as the accountable body as 

well as for GFirst LEP. These implications and a fuller action plan for the Assurance Framework are being 

worked through with Nigel Riglar, Claire Edwards and Kaye Turner on 2
nd

 December so a verbal update 

on this will be provided at the CEGJC meeting. 

3. Monitoring metrics 

Government has asked for initial feedback on which of the proposed metrics we expect to report back 

on and this has been provided. Civil servants are now reviewing the initial feedback from all LEPs and we 

expect confirmation of metrics and reporting requirements by January 2015. 

4. Evaluation plan 

Further work needs to be done on this to select the project/s that will be evaluated, to commission and 

pay for the evaluation work and to build evaluation requirements into the terms of the funding for 

project sponsors ahead of the funding starting to flow in 2015. 

5. Accountable Body role and guidance 

BIS is planning a workshop in December/January for local authorities such as GCC that will be acting as  

accountable bodies for Growth Deal funding. No further details so far. GCC colleagues have already been 

planning and working through the implications for GCC of the accountable body role. 

6. Growth Deal Signing Ceremony 

This has gone quiet as a programme of signing ceremonies with ministers has not been prepared. Civil 

servants expect signing ceremonies to be carried out by whichever minister is visiting the LEP area at a 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

suitable time to do the ceremony. This means we don’t know which minister may be involved. We have 

been asked to contact local MPs to alert them to this and to ask them to inform us if any ministers are 

likely to be visiting Gloucestershire so that we can co-ordinate a signing ceremony with the relevant 

minister. Nationally, approx. one third of the signing ceremonies have been completed. 

7. The possible impact of purdah 

Purdah starts 30
th

 March 2015 and will last until a new government is formed. This may have impacts on 

the marketing/promotion/launch of the Berkley Green project and, to a lesser extent, the Growth Hub. 

We are currently working through the implications with Local Growth Team colleagues.  

B. Top-Up Round Progress and Pipeline Projects 

Following the LEP Board meeting on 21
st

 October and the GEGJC meeting on 31
st

 October to review the 

summaries of the pipeline projects that had been submitted, we have continued to work with Local 

Growth Team colleagues to clarify which projects are likely to be suitable for funding and to work with 

project sponsors on the detailed business cases required by Government. We are now awaiting 

feedback from Government about the likelihood of these projects being funded as part of the ‘top up’ 

growth deal for LEP areas. We will continue discussions with Government colleagues about these 

proposals and will update GEGJC once outcomes are known.  As previously highlighted, there is no 

guarantee that we will be able to get approval to fund any proposals and the Autumn Statement will be 

a significant factor in this.  

Government is scenario planning for differing outcomes from the Autumn Statement and to help with 

this Government has requested LEPs to provide some ‘headline’ information about their potential 

pipeline of proposals. This is so Government can understand the possible financial commitments 

involved for its different departments e.g. transport asks of DfT, skills capital asks of SFA and BIS, 

housing commitments for DCLG, etc. GFirst LEP was informed about what was required for this on 17
th

 

November and subsequently contacted a wide range of likely project sponsors on 20
th

 November to seek 

this headline information by 28
th

 November so that information can be returned to Government in w/c 

1
st

 December. All Gloucestershire local authority chief executives have been contacted as part of this 

gathering of ‘headline’ information. 

C. European Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF) update 

 

1. Local area ESIF Committee 

The purpose of this committee is to implement the ESIF Strategy and to shape, approve and oversee the 

ESIF investments. The committee is currently being formed and will meet in shadow form on 1
st

 

December to start the induction and briefing of the members. A second induction meeting for those 

members unable to attend on 1
st

 December has been organised for 9
th

 January. Membership includes 

representation from: local authorities (Shaun Parsons, Gloucestershire County Council and Steve Lydon, 

Stroud District Council, representing the Districts); higher education; local businesses; local voluntary 

sector; environment; GFirst LEP; etc. Meetings will take place approx. every 6 weeks.  

Page 12



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

The committee will move from its ‘shadow’ status once the national operational programmes for 

European Social Fund (ESF), European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and European Agricultural 

Fund for Rural Development (EAFRD) have been approved by the European Commission.  

2. Possible delay in European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 

It is now quite possible that the ERDF national operational programme may not be approved by the 

European Commission until June 2015. This will present inevitable delays for the commissioning of some 

ERDF investments. It is hoped to keep this disruption to a minimum by continuing to work with DCLG 

and the local ESIF committee so that the ‘back office’ work on ERDF investments can be done ready for 

the sign-off of the national operational programme. We will continue to monitor the risks this presents 

and, in particular, any risks to Growth Deal investments/projects. 

 

Pete Carr, Deputy Chief Executive, GFirst LEP 

November 2014 

 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

LEP Assurance Framework: Working Draft 

Introduction 

1. We asked all LEPs as part of their Growth Deal to sign up to working with us to develop a single 

assurance framework covering all Government funding flowing through LEPs, to ensure all LEPs 

have robust value for money processes in place.  The purpose of this LEP assurance framework is 

to support the developing confidence in delegating funding from central budgets and 

programmes via a single pot mechanism..  It should be viewed in the context of the 

Accountability Systems Statements for both Local Government and the Local Growth Fund which 

provide assurance to the Departmental Accounting Officer and to Parliament, for how Local 

Growth Funds and wider funding routed through Local Government are allocated, and that there 

are robust local systems in place which ensure resources are spent with regularity, propriety, 

and value for money.  

2. It is one of four key related Growth Deal implementation documents which should be viewed 

together.  The other documents are: 

(i) the Growth Deal grant offer letter in which the Department for Communities and 

Local Government will set out the degree of flexibility on offer to each LEP and any 

limited conditions around use of that funding.  This will be issued at the time of the 

Autumn Statement and will also confirm the pipeline and tail funding for future 

years as well as the monitoring metrics that have been agreed with the LEP. 

(ii) the monitoring and evaluation framework which establishes a suite of monitoring 

metrics to support Growth Deal monitoring and reporting, and our expectations 

around proportionate evaluation that Government expects LEPs to implement  

(i) Implementation summary report is a live document, which captures all the key 

implementation milestones, and actions for each LEP’s Growth Deal and agreed 

between Government and the LEP  

3. This document, informed by LEPs and their accountable 151 officer’s sets out what Government 

expect LEPs to cover in their local assurance frameworks, building on the existing Local 

Government system, the Local Transport Board assurance framework, and Skills Funding Agency 

support offer.  We have kept it light touch, focused only on those key practices and standards 

which are necessary to provide Government and r local partners with assurance that decisions 

over funding are proper, transparent, and that they deliver value for money.   LEPs will have 

considerable freedom to determine how to implement the key practices and standards 

articulated in this national framework through their own local assurance framework. 

4. Work on developing each LEP’s local assurance framework is a core element of their Growth 

Deal, and as such will be picked up as a key action in their implementation summary which 

Central Lead and Relationship Managers will be working with LEPs to agree.  We expect that 

many LEPs will already be doing much of what is outlined already, and may want to use their 

existing Local Transport Board assurance frameworks as the basis for what we articulate in this 

document.  

5. We will look to the Accountable Local Authority as the legal recipient of fundingto take 

responsibility for ensuring that a local assurance framework is in place, that it meets the 

standards set out in this document, and that all funding decisions are made in accordance with 

it.   Finalised Local Assurance frameworks should be published on the LEP website, signed off by 

the LEP board and accountable local authority ,  demonstrating that theyconsider it to be  fit for 

purpose and meets the standards sets out in this document.  As it is a living document it should 

be also reviewed annually, by the LEP and accountable local authority.        

Page 15



2 

 

Part 1: LEP Governance and decision making 

6. LEPs have rightly established and structured themselves in very different ways, reflecting the 

differing needs and demands of each area, and we are not seeking to change that.  Government 

want to ensure  however that for all 39 LEPs, Government and local areas are clear about how 

the LEP operates, and how and when decisions are taken, and by whom. Government therefore 

ask that LEPs local assurance frameworks are clear and unambiguous about who has authority 

for decision making. The local assurance framework should set out: 

• TheLEP board membership, and what, if any sub boards there may be, including the 

employment and skills board and a description of how the Local Transport Board is being 

integrated within the LEP.  

• A clear description of the roles and responsibilities of the main LEP board and any sub-

boards, with a particular focus on who is responsible for what types of decisions including 

schemes of delegation and clarity on which body or person is responsible for final sign off on 

funding decisions.  There should also be clear lines of reporting back to the LEP board, and 

where appropriate to the accountable local authority  

• A clear description of the relationship between the LEP board and the supporting local 

authority partnership arrangement, bringing all Local Authority Leaders across the LEP 

together t  and where appropriate arrangements for cross LEP working 

• Description of the arrangements for supporting the effective delivery and implementation of 

projects, including relationships with delivery bodies 

Part 2: Strong supportive local authority partnership working across the LEP 

7. Government want to be confident that there are strong underpinning local authority partnership 

arrangements in place to facilitate joint decision making and collaboration on growth and 

economic development between all local authorities in each LEP area.  It’s important that local 

authorities across the LEP area don’t just ‘support’ growth priorities but actively play a part in 

ensuring their delivery – by aligning strategic plans, through use of their powers and 

competencies and through pooling and aligning of local resources and efforts.     

 

8. How LEP areas approach this will vary considerably given the differing local circumstances. 

However, areas should seek to develop an arrangement which enables collective engagement of 

local authority leaders in decision-making on growth priorities, ideally with the LEP represented, 

supported by strong collaboration and joint delivery at executive level.  

 

Part 3: Transparent decision making 

9. It is important that LEPs have clear arrangements in place which enable effective and 

meaningful engagement of local partners and the public, and have transparent practices in 

place which give people confidence that decisions made are proper, based on evidence and 

capable of being independently scrutinised.   

10. We expect LEPs to take a proportionate approach to sharing and publishing information, using 

the prompts set out below as the basis  for determining what they release.  We fully expect 

that there will be information which is not appropriate for publication – including information 

that is commercially confidential, and expect LEPs to use their own discretion in determining 

what shouldn’t be published.  Our expectation however is that the public should see that the 

Page 16



3 

 

LEP is applying similar standards of transparency as other public sector organisations over 

decisions it makes over public funding.  Within reason we would therefore expect LEPs to: 

• Have a dedicated website through which local partners and the public can keep in touch 

with progress on implementing the Growth Deal, access key documents etc 

• Publish their arrangements for making, and recording decisions, and for ensuring that 

papers, decisions, minutes, agendas etc are published in line with existing local authority 

rules and regulations [access to information, Schedule 12A of the LGA 1972, as amended 

by the FOI 2000]  

• Through their accountable local authority ensure that Freedom of Information and 

Environmental Information Regulation requests are dealt with in line with relevant 

legislation.   

• Have a published conflicts of interest policy, register of interests covering any decision 

makers, and published complaints policy. 

• Ensure that there is appropriate local engagement – both with public and private 

stakeholders to inform key decisions and with  the general public around future LEP strategy 

development 

 

• Publish arrangements for developing, prioritising, appraising and approving projects, with a 

view to ensuring that a wide range of delivery partners can be involved (see also Part 5 on 

value for money below). 

 

• Clearly set out the LEP’s priorities and mechanisms for maximising the social value of its 

investment funding and activities so that partners and beneficiaries can play an active role in 

the programme. 

 

Part 4: Accountable decision making  

11. Local Growth Fund resources will be paid via a section 31 grant determination to a lead local 

authority (accountable body)/ Combined Authority in all cases regardless of the differing legal 

set ups that exist. The proper use and administration of this funding will be set out through the 

grant funding letter/agreement (a draft of which has been published alongside this document), 

this assurance framework and the wider implementation summary. It is important to note that it 

is the Government’s expectation that accountable bodies cannot use this funding for their own 

purposes, or without any clear mandate from the LEP. 

12.  The lead local authority, working with relevant officers will need to put in place appropriate 

arrangements for the proper use and administration of funding, which fall under the annual 

audit of the local authorities accounts, and for ensuring that decisions are made in accordance 

with the local LGF assurance framework.   

13. The LEP have a vital leadership role to play, responsible for developing and maintaining the 

Strategic Economic Plan and determining the key funding priorities to which LGF and other 

resources should be directed, and ensuring there is adequate capacity to deliver against those.  

Democratic accountability for the decisions made by the LEP are provided through local 

authority leader representation, with accountability to the business community flowing through 

the business leaders.  In places where not all local authorities are represented directly on the 

Page 17



4 

 

LEP board, it is important that their representatives have been given the mandate – through an 

underpinning Local Authority arrangement, such as a Joint Committee or Combined Authority or 

other similar arrangement, which brings all the local authorities together in the area. 

14. The complementary roles of both parties – the legal and financial responsibilities of the 

accountable local authority/ Combined Authority  and the leadership role and democratic 

accountabilities of the LEP need to be supported by a set of agreed systems and practices 

expressed in the LEP local assurance framework.  It is important that these practices/ systems 

support both the accountable local authority role in ensuring proper, transparent decisions 

which deliver value for money but also support timely, informed decision making by the LEP.   As 

part of these ways of working, we would expect the local assurance framework to set out the 

circumstances under which the accountable body would not comply with a LEP decision and the 

process for resolving that.  We would also strongly encourage LEPs to make use of independent 

scrutiny arrangements, either through the accountable body or via a collaborative peer 

challenge approach. 

15. We expect the local assurance framework to:  

• Confirm accountable body arrangements for the Local Growth fund and other funding 

sources received from Government 

• Confirm that use of resources are subject to the usual local authority checks and balances – 

including the financial duties and rules which require councils to act prudently in spending, 

which are overseen and checked by the Responsible Chief Finance Officer – the 151 Officer, 

or in the case of a Combined Authority a Section 73 officer and to ensure transparency that 

annual accounts are published. 

• Confirm the responsibilities of the accountable Local Authority/ Combined Authority and : 

o ensuring decisions and activities of the LEP conform with legal requirements with 

regard to equalities, social value, environment, State Aid, procurement etc 

o ensuring that the funds are used appropriately.  

o ensuring that the local LEP assurance framework is adhered to   

o maintaining the official record of LEP proceedings and holding copies of all 

relevant LEP documents relating to LGF funding 

o responsibility for the decisions of the LEP in approving projects (for example if 

subjected to legal challenge) 

o ensuring that there are arrangements for local audit of funding allocated by LEPs at 

least equivalent to those in place for Local Authority spend 

• Confirm that the LEP and accountable body have agreed timescales and operating 

practices to support the effective implementation of decisions.  This should include for 

example a means for monitoring delivery and to provide clarity about and what 

information it would expect to receive from scheme promoters and delivery agents. When 

the LEP awards funding for a project there should be a clear written agreement between the 

accountable local authority and the delivery agent clearly setting out the split of 

responsibilities and include adequate provisions for the protection of public funds (e.g. 

arrangements to suspend or claw back funding in the event of non-delivery or 

mismanagement). 

Page 18



5 

 

Part 5: Ensuring value for money -prioritisation, appraisal and business case 

development  

16. Building on the arrangements which LEPs put in place for Growing Places Fund, Growth Deals, 

and drawing on the experience of Local Transport Boards, it is important that all LEPs have 

robust arrangements in place to ensure value for money and effective delivery, through strong 

project development, project and options appraisal, prioritisation, and business case 

development.  There are two main aspects to this. 

17. Part 5a addresses what LEPs will need to consider in deciding how to allocate their funding to 

projects and prioritise between proposals.  Given the considerable variation in types and sizes of 

projects which LEPs may want to support, and acknowledging that many LEPs already have 

effective practices in place, our intention is not to establish any rigid ‘rules’ about the methods 

which LEPs must use, to prioritise between projects, but rather establish a set of guiding 

principles.  

18. Part 5b considers the more detailed business case work we would expect a LEP to undertake 

once a project has been identified for funding, to ensure that the proposal is optimised and 

represents a value for money and realistically deliverable solution. 

19. Across both of these aspects, LEPs should ensure that they have robust processes in place which 

ensure all funding decisions are based on impartial advice. The arrangements set out in the local 

accountability framework will need to ensure a clear separation between those acting as scheme 

promoters and those advising decision makers will be maintained, so that the LEP is acting on 

impartial advice on the merits of (potentially competing) business cases.  

 

Part 5a: Options appraisal and prioritisation: 

20. LEPs should have a clear and transparent basis, (published on their website) against which 

projects and programmes are initially identified / commissioned, appraised and prioritised.  LEPs 

local accountability frameworks should set out: 

• The evidential basis on which the need for intervention is based and how the LEP will ensure 

rigour and data quality and programmes and projects are identified based on 

need/opportunity and clear application of best practice;  

• The methodology used to assess overall value for money of the LEP’s programme, and to 

produce a list of prioritised projects, ensuring that the full range of options which enable the 

strategic objective to be met/ problem addressed, are considered.  Particular attention 

should be given to how different types of projects will be compared and assessed. Typically 

this would include consideration – at a level proportionate to the scale of funding required 

for the proposal – of whether:  

o there is a clear rationale for the interventions linked with the strategic objectives 

identified in the Strategic Economic Plan 

o the proposal has clearly  defined inputs, activities, outputs and anticipated 

outcomes, which are additional, ensuring that factors such as displacement and 

deadweight have been taken into account where appropriate 

o the benefits exceed the costs of intervention 

o deliverability and risks have been appropriately considered and if there are likely to 

be clear mitigations for those  

 

Page 19



6 

 

• How the evidence will used to inform decisions and how the LEP will ensure rigour and data 

quality. 

 

Part 5b: Value for Money and Business Case Development for Prioritised/Funded 

Proposals 
 

21. The methodology used to assess value for money and the degree of detail to which business 

cases are developed in support of particular projects or programmes should be proportionate to 

the funding allocated and in line with established Government guidance including the HM 

Treasury Green Book.  Typically we would expect business cases to address, in a proportionate 

manner, the 5 cases set out in supplementary guidance to the Green Book.   

 

22. We do not envisage this being a significant new burden as LEPs may for example have already 

adopted LTB practices for transport projects, and SFA practices for skills capital projects. [A list of 

basic expectations for different types of specific project appraisal are attached at Annex A. ] 

 

23. Given their importance to achieving local growth, the Government is keen to ensure that LEPs do 

not focus purely on the value for money aspects of business cases but also ensure that the 

commercial, financial and management arrangements are appropriate for quick and effective 

delivery. To assist with this, Infrastructure UK have produced a checklist [insert hyperlink once 

available] for LEPs to consider when they review these aspects of business cases. LEPs will wish 

to ensure that they refer to this when considering capital infrastructure projects.  

24. For all projects and programmes LEPs will need to ensure that there is a named individual with 

overall responsibility for ensuring value for money and that named individuals (not necessarily 

the same person) should be responsible for scrutiny and recommendations on each business 

case. These responsible individuals should ideally be independent of the promoting organisation 

or where this is impractical, should sit outside the management unit responsible for developing 

and promoting the business case.  

 

 

 

  

Page 20



7 

 

Annex A 

Assurance on Transport and Skills Capital Schemes 

This overarching LEP framework covers all Government funding which LEPs and their accountable 

local authorities are responsible for.  This framework is supported by more tailored advice from DfT 

and the SFA specific to transport and skills capital schemes, but they are wholly consistent with the 

principles and practices set out in this document and should be read together.  Links to these related 

documents are set out below along      

Transport schemes 

As previously outlined, the funding allocated to Local Transport Bodies (LTBs) in July 2013 will now 

be paid to LEPs.  How LEPs choose to incorporate the LTB function within the LEP structure is a 

matter for local discretion.  We are aware that Local authorities and some LEPs are already working 

within the assurance framework set out for Local Transport Bodies, which will stand them in good 

stead, as the expectations and principles outlined in this new LEP framework are in keeping with 

what was articulated in the earlier LTB assurance framework.  We would therefore anticipate LEPs 

continuing to follow the guidance on value for money previously issued by DfT.  

 

Paragraphs 67- 79 of part 3 of the guidance to LTBs set out the minimum requirements on value for 

money assessment and assurance of transport projects. LEPs are expected to follow these minimum 

requirement for transport schemes funded through the Local Growth Fund (including through pre-

allocated funding).  

 

LEPs will wish to note that DfT’s guidance to LTBs promotes the use of proportionate appraisal and 

that there is some significant discretion in the level of detail that is appropriate depending on the 

nature of the transport scheme concerned. 

Skills capital schemes 

Funding allocated to skills capital schemes as part of Local Growth Funds will be paid to LEPs via a 

lead Local Authority/ Combined Authority, as part of the overall LGF payments.  How LEPs choose to 

incorporate management of skills capital funds within their LEP governance is a matter for local 

discretion. 

We are aware that the majority of LEPs have chosen to take up the Skills Funding Agency support 

service to assist with the LEP’s skills capital funding responsibilities, with a locally tailored approach 

covering a range of activities within the LEP’s overall skills capital programme implementation to 

support LEP’s decision making, e.g. advice on assessment of property/estate; on financial 

investment, affordability and maximisation of leverage; and on education/economic growth business 

case.   

We would anticipate that LEPs will base their local processes on Skills Funding Agency good practice, 

advice and guidance tailored to local circumstances, or put in place equivalent robust local 

arrangements to ensure value for money and effective delivery of skills capital schemes, through 

strong project development, project and options appraisal, prioritisation, and business case 

development – as set out in paragraphs 16-24 above. 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Sandra Cowley, Pool Management Team  1 

Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool 

November 2014 

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 

Friday 5 December 2014 

 

Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool 

2014/15 Mid-year update 

 

Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Committee with the half year 

position of the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool for 2014/15. 

 

Update on 2014/15 performance 

Individual pool members estimated the level of business rates income for 2014/15 on 

their NNDR1 returns.  Non-Domestic rating income across the pool was estimated at 

£207 million.  After taking into account the amount to be retained locally and any levy 

due on pool-wide growth, these estimates suggested that there would be a net 

surplus of around £1.7 million arising as a result of pooling.   

Based on data available at the end of September, the majority of pool members have 

seen growth in their business rates income through a combination of higher than 

anticipated rates income and/or than anticipated mandatory and discretionary reliefs. 

However, Tewkesbury have seen a significant reduction to their business rates 

income owing to a large reduction in the rateable value of Virgin Media/Telewest 

against the 2010 rating list (reduced from an RV of £7.250m to £5.700m) leading to a 

refund of approximately £2m.  Virgin Media had appealed the 2005 rating list 

assessment prior to the start of the Business Rates Retention scheme, and the 

appeal is still currently being considered (although a final decision may not be made 

until early 2015/16).  The RV on the 2005 list is £6.330m, higher than the revised 

2010 list RV.  If VM are successful in reducing their 2005 assessment in line with the 

revised £5.700m rating, there would be a significant refund due.  Therefore the 

backdated appeals provision for Tewkesbury has been increased by around £650k 

to allow for this.  This means that the level of business rates income for TBC is some 

£5.9m below that of their NNDR1-based estimate. 

This will clearly have an impact on the Pool surplus for the year as Tewkesbury will 

be due a safety net payment from the pool of approximately £778,000 based on 

current estimates. 

The table below shows the impact of the half year pool position on the distribution of 

the pool surplus. The estimated amount to be available to the SEDF has reduced 

from £282,000 to £113,000. 

  

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



Sandra Cowley, Pool Management Team  2 

Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool 

November 2014 

Table 1 – Distribution of Pool Surplus 

 
 

This particular issue of the backdated appeal on the Virgin Media site highlights the 

need to retain a provision within the pool for losses. In the event that there was no 

growth to offset any losses arising, the provision would need to be utilised. The risk 

of further appeals of this size is small but there is an ongoing risk of further appeals 

being submitted.  

This estimate also assumes that the growth experienced by some pool members in 

the first half year is maintained. 

 

Funding the Spending Plan for the Joint Committee 

Table 2 sets out an estimate of the annual budget for the GEGJC over the next 4 

years in line with the Funding Policy approved by the Committee at its last meeting 

and how this commitment may be funded through the estimated pool contribution to 

the SEDF. Given the Pool performance in 2014/15 due to backdated appeals, an 

average of the first 2 years has been assumed as the level of funding available in the 

last 2 years. This will be sufficient to continue to meet the administrative costs and 

the costs of the Economic Co-ordinator post. 

 

  

2013/14 

Actual (£)

2014/15 

NNDR1 

Estimate 

(£)

2014/15 

Mid Year 

Estimate 

(£)

Retained Business Rates (outside pool) 81,594,294 84,948,896 84,101,834

Retained Business Rates (with pool) 82,366,055 86,658,932 85,746,339

Total amount to distribute (before putting 

authorities back to pre-pool position) 786,615 1,710,035 1,644,505

1a. Put all authorities in same position as before pooling

       Cotswold Safety Net Payment 14,854

       Tewkesbury Safety Net Payment 778,420

Total amount to distribute (after putting authorities 

back to pre-pool position) 786,615 1,710,035 866,084

1b. Share of losses if Pool in deficit (if no pool reserve) 0 0 0

2.   Pool Reserve for Safety Net/Appeals/Losses 300,000 300,000 300,000

3.   Strategic Economic Development Fund (20%) 94,352 282,007 113,217

Remaining balance to Districts & County (80/20 

split) 392,263 1,128,028 452,868

Cheltenham 52,590 154,613 77,853

Cotswold 25,161 114,074 50,504

Forest of Dean 46,897 107,107 49,111

Gloucester 72,670 205,454 100,730

Stroud 37,351 143,602 53,905

Tewkesbury 67,258 177,573 30,191

Gloucestershire 75,482 225,606 90,574

Page 24



Sandra Cowley, Pool Management Team  3 

Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool 

November 2014 

Table 2 – GEGJC Spending Plan & SEDF Balance 

 
 

 

Pool Governance 

The Pool Governance arrangements were reviewed by the Pool Management Team 

(PMT) in September this year following the first year of operation of the Pool. The 

arrangements were also reviewed by Internal Audit and any recommendations 

arising from the audit have been incorporated in the revised agreement. 

Essentially, there are no significant changes other than to make the arrangements 

current as opposed a proposal to set up a pool. There has been no change to the 

general principles of pooling or the distribution of pool surplus/deficits. Given the 

impact backdated appeals have had in the first 18 months of the operation of the 

pool, the need to maintain a provision has been confirmed. The PMT keep this under 

close scrutiny and may even need to increase the provision following meetings with 

the Rating Valuation Office regarding the potential for future appeals. 

Given the impact that any changes to the distribution of Pool surplus/deficits might 

have on individual pool member’s budgets, the decision to vary the distribution 

remains with the PMT who have to agree unanimously to any changes. 

 

 

 

 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£ £ £ £

Opening balance 0 57,685 87,685 107,685

Expenditure

1. Administration costs

    - Printing etc. 2,917 5,000 5,000 5,000

    - Economic Co-ordinator post 18,750 75,000 75,000 75,000

    - Recruitment costs 15,000 0 0 0

2. Delivery of the SEP 0 0 0 0

3. Wider economic growth 0 0 0 0

Total expenditure 36,667 80,000 80,000 80,000

Income

Share of surplus from BR Pool 94,352 110,000 100,000 100,000

Closing balance 57,685 87,685 107,685 127,685

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) 
Meeting 5th December 2014 
 
Future growth, infrastructure requirements and the Community Infrastructure Levy  
 
Introduction 
 

1. Gloucestershire is anticipated to be subject to significant growth over the next 15-20 
years. The 6 local planning authorities (LPAs) have their respective local plans, local 
development frameworks and/or Joint Core Strategy (JCS) which are at differing 
stages of preparation, ranging from formally adopted to pre- Examination. Whilst 
impossible to say with any definitiveness what levels of growth will occur County-
wide in the future, it is not unreasonable to expect c. 50,000 dwellings over the next 
20 years, with over 60% of that being in the JCS area. 
 

2. As part of that growth, there will be significant infrastructure requirements. The 
County Council has statutory and non-statutory responsibilities in its roles as 
Highway Authority, Transport Authority, Education Authority and Lead Local Flood 
Authority, etc. Similarly the District Councils have various responsibilities as LPAs 
and need to decide levels of affordable housing, public open space, etc. 
 

What’s happens at present? 
 

3. Historically, infrastructure associated with future developments have been identified 
in the respective local plans and/or negotiated through conditions and legal 
agreements (e.g. Section 106 Agreements) associated with planning applications. 
This has worked well over the years and the impacts of developments have been 
significantly mitigated as they came forward. 
 

4. Future infrastructure requirements associated with emerging growth has already 
been identified. For instance, the Gloucestershire ‘Local Developer Guide’ (adopted 
February 2014) outlines the County Council’s approach towards securing future 
infrastructure for which it is responsible. This includes an analysis of: pre-school child 
care, primary and secondary education, youth support services, adult social care, 
libraries, broadband, flood alleviation, transport / highways, fire and rescue services, 
etc. 
 

5. This Guide is aimed at supporting district and borough councils in identifying future 
infrastructure requirements through their suite of emerging Infrastructure Delivery 
Plans (IDPs) and should be used to complement existing County Council plans and 
policies, such as those in the Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) (adopted 2011), Waste 
Core Strategy (WCS) (adopted 2012) and Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 
(LFRMS) (adopted 2014). 
 

Future funding opportunities 

 

6. There are funding and schemes already approved and provisionally approved to 
assist future infrastructure needs. Examples of these would be through: 
 

a. Gloucestershire Local Transport Body (GLTB); 
b. Pinchpoint Funding; 
c. Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) 1 (and SEP ‘top up’); 
d. Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Fund (GIIF); 

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



e. Gloucestershire County Council’s Capital Programme; 
f. Already secured S106 agreements / Unilateral Undertakings; etc. 

 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
7. Infrastructure provided through such sources, whilst welcome, will not in itself 

mitigate the impacts of the likely future growth in the County. A key option that is 
currently available to the LPAs is the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The CIL is 
a relatively new infrastructure funding system introduced in 2010. It allows LPAs to 
secure support from almost all development to help deliver new or improved 
infrastructure and services. LPAs (not the County Council) have the choice whether 
or not to introduce CIL, although it should be noted that none in Gloucestershire, to 
date, have done so. LPAs are responsible for setting local rates for CIL payments, 
but must do so based on local conditions – land values, build costs, etc. LPAs will 
need to decide upfront what types of infrastructure should be supported by CIL – at 
present, this cannot include affordable housing. 
 

8. A key purpose of CIL is to help meet envisaged gaps in funding for new infrastructure 
after other mainstream sources have been exhausted. Understanding funding gaps is 
an essential part of the local plan-making process, particularly in demonstrating how 
a plan will be viably delivered. Consequently, CIL can only be introduced once an up-
to-date plan has been prepared.  

 
9. The introduction of local CILs, if and when this occurs, will have a significant impact 

on the future use of S106 agreements across Gloucestershire. Infrastructure and 
services identified under a new local CIL will be barred from S106 agreements (in 
order to prevent ‘double charging’ of developers). 
 

10. It is likely, but not definite, that major future developments (such as the urban 
extensions identified in the emerging JCS) will be dealt with through S106 
agreements and therefore not be subject to CIL. By way of an example, c.12,500 of 
the total c.31,000 JCS housing requirement (2011-2031) in the recently submitted 
documentation is proposed to be met from strategic urban extensions. Were the 
current process to continue into the future for such major developments, the LPAs 
and the County Council will simply continue to negotiate the required infrastructure 
on an application by application basis. When one discounts those houses already 
built and subject to planning permissions / Section 106s already, the amount of 
dwellings which would be subject to future CIL is further reduced. 
 

Possible future issues / shortfalls in funding? 

 

11. It is obviously impossible to satisfactorily predict, at present, what the impact of CIL 
will be and what impact there will be on the future of infrastructure funding. What is 
known at present is that the use of Section 106 Agreements and associated 
methods, when added to the infrastructure improvements funded through other 
sources, works reasonably well in mitigating the impacts of developments on a case-
by-case basis. The County Council, for instance, has successfully secured c.£6.4M in 
the last 12 months through Section 106s for infrastructure it is responsible for. Over 
£5M of which was for education provision. 
 

12. Clearly, were CILs to come forward, the County Council would not be able to set up 
its own CIL and would merely be a statutory consultee during the process. It will be 
for the LPAs to lead on the formation of a CIL charging schedule. There is a risk, 
therefore, to the County Council that its views and preferences are not taken into 

Page 28



account regarding the infrastructure associated with its statutory and non-statutory 
responsibilities. In additional Parish and Town Councils will have a call on a 
proportion of the CIL ‘pot’. Obviously, it is hoped that a mutually agreeable schedule 
can be secured between all parties through negotiation. 
 

13. A key issue when setting a future CIL is that of affordable housing. To put it simply, 
the higher the affordable housing requirement, the less monies will be available from 
a development for CIL- (and Section 106-) related infrastructure. With emerging 
plans (such as the JCS) specifying an affordable housing requirement of 40%, this 
could hamper the ability of the LPAs and the County Council to secure the required 
infrastructure from future developments, due to viability issues. 
 

14. There is also a future change in legislation which will result in a more restrictive 
approach to ‘pooling’ developer contributions. From April 2015, councils will be able 
to pool no more than five contributions from separate planning permissions for an 
item of infrastructure not funded by the CIL. This will severely restrict the use of 
future Section 106 agreements to fund major infrastructure, such as strategic road 
schemes and is a key advantage of CIL. 
 

15. Given the probable shortfalls in future infrastructure provision, it will be important for 
both the LPAs and the County Council to quantify and prioritise their future 
requirements. This can then feed into the future development of both IDPs and CILs. 
 

Conclusion and recommendations 

 

16. Given the significant levels of growth anticipated in the County over the next 15-20 
years, the future provision of adequate infrastructure and its funding is of uppermost 
importance. Whilst there is significant infrastructure already in the pipeline, there 
remains a need to secure additional infrastructure through future developments. 
 

17. For the time being, given that no CILs are in place in the County, current practice is 
likely to continue – i.e. (i) relevant infrastructure will be identified in emerging Local 
Plans / JCS / IDPs / LTP3, etc. and (ii) Section 106 Agreements will be made with 
developers to secure relevant infrastructure on an application-by-application basis.  
 

18. Were CIL to come forward, it will be imperative for the LPAs and County Council to 
liaise closely to establish the quantum and prioritisation of future infrastructure 
provision in the associated charging schedule. The risks and benefits of such an 
approach need to be carefully considered. In addition, any likely shortfalls in 
infrastructure provision will need to be identified, with a view to establishing 
alternative methods to secure the required investments. 

 
 
 
 
 
Simon Excell 
Lead Commissioner – Strategic Infrastructure 
Gloucestershire County Council 
24

th
 November 2014 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Appointment of a Gloucestershire Economic Growth  

Joint Committee Representative to the GLTB 

 
 

The Gloucestershire Local Transport Board (GLTB) was formed in 2013 in response to a 

Department for Transport (DfT) initiative to devolve the control of capital funds for major 

transport schemes to Local Enterprise Partnership areas, in line with the Government's 

localism agenda.  

 

In July 2013 the government confirmed an allocation of £9.8m for major transport schemes 

in Gloucestershire over four years (2015 to 2019).  

 

The GLTB is governed by the GLTB Assurance Framework. The Assurance Framework was 

adopted by the GLTB on 9th April 2014. Further proposed amendments were agreed at a 

meeting on 3rd September 2014 and it is envisaged that the Assurance Framework will be 

updated by spring 2015. The Assurance Framework as well as further information on the 

GLTB can be found here: http://www.gltb.org.uk/index.aspx?articleid=113228 

 

The GLTB assurance framework states that the following organisations are able to nominate 

full members of the Gloucestershire Local Transport Board (GLTB): 

• Gloucestershire County Council (GCC).  

• Gloucestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  

• Leadership Gloucestershire (LG).  

 

The Leadership Gloucestershire representative on the GLTB is Cllr. Paul James (Gloucester 

CC) and his deputy is Cllr Steve Jordan (Cheltenham BC).  

 

At the GLTB meeting on the 3rd of September, it was also discussed that the GLTB Member 

currently nominated by Leadership Gloucestershire should be replaced by a Gloucestershire 

Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) representative. The GLTB resolved at that 

meeting that the assurance framework needs to reflect the relationship between the GLTB 

and the GEGJC. It is therefore proposed that the GLTB member representing 

Gloucestershire’s Councils is nominated by the GEGJC from now on.  

 

The first term of office for GLTB Full members run from initial appointment in March 2013 

until March 2015. All bodies represented on the GLTB board have therefore been asked to 

appoint/re-appoint their representatives (and deputies) on the GLTB board by March 2015. 

 

Subsequent terms of office will run for another two years and there is no limit on the 

number of terms that a GLTB Full member can potentially serve. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Members are asked to consider nominating a Gloucestershire Council’s representative to the GLTB , 

supported by a deputy. 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
Rail Issues 

December 2014 
 
Aim  
 
This paper briefly outlines current developments to the rail network in the area.  It 
sets out the current issues and opportunities for improvements and the reasons for a 
joined up approach from organisations in Gloucestershire to bid for funding.  And to 
lobby Government and the rail industry for improvements to infrastructure, services 
and rolling stock.   
 
Introduction  
 
There has been considerable investment in the rail industry in recent years which is 
set to continue over the coming years.   Passenger numbers have risen by 50% over 
the past ten years along with a substantial rise in freight being carried by rail. 
 
Approximately £7bn is being invested in rail infrastructure across the Western region 
in the period 2014 – 2019.  A large proportion of this is for electrification of the Great 
Western route and associated schemes which will ultimately improve journey times 
and resilience for services running from London to the County via the North and 
South Cotswolds line.  Part of this major project  included the recent redoubling of 
the Swindon to Kemble line at a of cost £43m.  Also, Network Rail have recently 
invested £5m in improving line speeds between north of Bristol and south of 
Birmingham.   In addition approximately £70m was spent on redoubling a significant 
section of the North Cotswold Line between Oxford and Worcester via Moreton in 
Marsh in 2011.  Work to install lifts and a footbridge at Gloucester station , at a cost 
of £2m, was completed last year.   
 
The County Council has no statutory responsibility for rail although there are clearly 
a number of interfaces in terms of highways, parking, reducing congestion etc.  
However, it is important that steps are taken to ensure that Gloucestershire 
continues to receive improvements to both its infrastructure and services and doesn’t 
lag behind adjacent counties.   
 
Issues for Gloucestershire  
 
One of the key issues for the County is connectivity to London.  Whilst surrounding 
towns and cities such as Bristol, Birmingham and Swindon have regular fast services 
to the capital the service from Cheltenham currently takes over 2 hours.  There is a 
risk that Gloucestershire will lose out economically to adjacent areas if connectivity 
isn’t improved. 
 
Gloucester misses out on direct services to the south west and the north west/east 
which tend to stop at Cheltenham instead.   
 
Some of the rolling stock is relatively old providing a poor passenger experience 
particularly on the local services to Worcester/Swindon  
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 33



A number of stations need modernising/improvements particularly at Gloucester, 
Cheltenham, Lydney, Stroud, Stonehouse and Kemble.   
 
Poor service to Ashchurch for Tewkesbury and Worcester 
 
A number of new stations have been suggested within the county such as Hunts 
Grove, Stonehouse Bristol Rd and Chipping Campden and just over the County 
boundary at Charfield.  The Worcester Parkway Regional Interchange station is 
being progressed by Worcestershire County Council/LEP. 
 
Opportunities  
 
The Network Rail Western Route Study Consultation is a key strategy document that 
looks at potential infrastructure requirements over the next 30 years to meet a 
number of conditional outputs to satisfy forecast increased demand.   It covers most 
of the rail network in Gloucestershire.  It sets out a series of possible infrastructure 
interventions and additional services from 2019 onwards to meet increased demand, 
improved journey times and better connectivity to other towns and cities.   
 
Franchise renewals such as those for Great Western, Cross Country and Wales and 
Borders provide an opportunity to request timetable changes, additional services and 
other improvements including enhancements to station facilities.     
 
Bids 
 
Bids for funding from sources such as the Strategic Economic Plan Growth Fund or 
Network Rail/DfT are likely to be given more weight and therefore more successful if 
they come from a single organisation representing a range of partners demonstrating 
a joined up approach.  DfT/Network Rail schemes such as Access for All and 
National Station Improvement Programme make funds available at relatively short 
notice and having a clear structure for responding on behalf of the county will 
improve successful outcomes.   
 
Through the successful SEP1 bid money has been allocated to improve the car park 
at Lydney Station and to investigate the possibility of reopening the underpass 
adjacent to the level crossing.    
 
Three rail related bids were submitted through the Gloucestershire Local Transport 
Board last year.  These were for: 
 

• Significant improvements to Cheltenham Station submitted by Cheltenham 
Borough Council (CBC). It has been provisionally awarded £1.5m; 

• A new station at Stonehouse Bristol Rd submitted by Stonehouse Town 
Council.  The bid made it through the preliminary selection stage but was not 
awarded any funds; and  

• A new station at Hunts Grove submitted by Quedgeley Parish Council.  The 
bid failed to make it through the initial project sift. 
 

Three rail bids were submitted in the recent SEP Growth Fund Round 2 funding 
process.   Bids were submitted by Cheltenham BC and Gloucester City Council for 

Page 34



station improvements within their respective administrative areas.  GCC submitted a 
bid for improvements to the remaining seven county stations.  Unfortunately all three 
bids were unsuccessful.  Feedback from the LEP indicates that a countywide bid for 
all stations submitted by one organisation would have had a greater chance of 
success.  The LEP urged GCC to work closely with CBC and the City on a county 
wide scheme.   GCC has been advised that they could all be considered as pipeline 
projects for a future bidding round. 
 
LTP3  
 
The rail strategy commissioned for the Gloucestershire Local Transport Board is 
being incorporated into the review of Local Transport Plan 3.  A report is due to go to 
Cabinet in January 2015. Consultation on this review is due to take place in spring 
2015 with adoption in September 2015.    This will embed rail priorities within a wider 
framework of transport policies for the County ensuring a more integrated approach.  
This in turn will feed into future bids and lobbying.   
 
Priorities  
 
Electrification of rail routes through the county is being considered for the period 
2019 -2024 as part of Network Rail’s national review of future electrification 
schemes.  Electrification offers a number of advantages including greater 
acceleration and higher speeds leading to increased network capacity, new/newer 
rolling stock, reduced line side emissions and quieter trains.  It will be important to 
lobby for this when the NR consultation is published in 2015.  Again a joined up 
approach will increase chances of success.   
 
As discussed previously reduced journey times particularly between London and the 
county are a priority especially in trying to attract new business to relocate as well as 
making rail travel more attractive to residents and existing businesses.     
 
Newer rolling stock for the county to replace some of the existing aged fleet.   
 
It is important to engage with the HS2 programme particularly the interface at 
Birmingham to ensure that Gloucestershire will benefit from improved journey times 
to the north west/east. 
 
It is also important to engage with the significant Metrowest project in the Greater 
Bristol area, promoted by the West of England Councils and the LEP which will have 
implications for rail services in Gloucestershire particularly additional services 
between Bristol and Gloucester.   
 
Continue to lobby the rail industry for station improvements and put bids for funding 
in where appropriate. 
 
It is considered that progressing these priorities through the various rail industry 
bodies is more likely to lead to positive outcomes if a joined up/united front is 
presented.   
 
 

Page 35



Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that given the strategic nature of the rail network and the recent 
SEP2 bid feedback from the LEP, the County Council takes a lead on the topic, in 
particular in terms of lobbying and putting in bids for project funding.  To this end it is 
recommended that a Member/ officer working group is set up to coordinate LA input 
into rail matters in Gloucestershire and surrounding areas.  Also, that a vision for rail 
is produced for Gloucestershire setting out the priorities over an agreed period of 
time.  
 

 

Page 36



^̂

^̂^̂

^̂

^̂

^̂

^̂
^̂

W
in

ch
co

m
b

e

Fa
ir

fo
rd

M
o

S
to

w
 O

n

B
o

u
rt

o
n

 O
n

 T
h

e
 W

a

N
o

rt
h

le
a

ch

S
h

a
rp

n
e

ss

S
tr

o
u

d

Te
w

k
e

sb
u

ry

C
ir

e
n

c
e

st
e

r

G
lo

u
c
e

st
e

r

C
h

e
lt

e
n

h
a

m

Ly
d

n
e

y

C
o

le
fo

rd

N
e

w
e

n
t

D
u

rs
le

y

C
h

u
rc

h
d

o
w

n

C
a

m

S
to

n
e

h
o

u
se

C
in

d
e

rf
o

rd

Te
tb

u
ry

Q
u

e
d

g
e

le
y

B
is

h
o

p
s 

C
le

e
v
e

N
a

il
sw

o
rt

h

²

K
e

m
b

le

^̂

^̂

^̂

^̂
C

h
ip

p
in

g

C
a

m
p

d
e

n

H
u

n
ts

 G
ro

v
e

S
to

n
e

h
o

u
se

S
to

n
e

h
o

u
se

(B
ri

st
o

l 
R

o
a

d
)

^

le
 N

e
w

 S
ta

ti
o

n
s 

&
 O

th
e

r
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

n
ts

F

F

F
u

ll
 R

e
d

o
u

b
li

n
g

n
s

s  S
c
h
e

m
e

s

S
y

st
e

m
-w

id
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

>
 N

e
w

 R
o

ll
in

g
 S

to
ck

>
 S

ta
ti

o
n

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	31 October

	4 Growth Deal
	AI1 APP LEP Accountability and Assurance Framework working draft     4

	5 Funding Policy
	7 Planning & Infrastructure
	8 Gloucestershire Local Transport Board
	10 Strategic Rail Issues
	RailwayStations_0538-2014_11_21v2 (2)


